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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Good afternoon, Members. The Budget
and Finance Committee meeting is now in session. Today's October 15,
2007, and the time is 1:35.
This time the Chair would like to introduce the Committee Members that
are here this afternoon. We do have Danny Mateo, Member Anderson,
Member Baisa, Member Medeiros, Member Molina, Member Victorino,
and the Vice-Chair for the Committee Member Hokama. Excused is
Member Johnson.
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With us this afternoon from the Administration we do have Brian Moto,
Corporation Counsel; Adrianne Heely, Deputy Corporation Counsel; Mr.
Kalbert Young, Director of Finance; and Mr. Scott Teruya, who is the
Acting Administrator for Real Property Tax. Supporting the Committee is
our Staff, Lance Taguchi, as well as Yvette Bouthillier.
Members, at this time the Chair would like to call on public testimony on
the agenda that is before us. Testimony will be limited to three minutes.
An additional one minute to conclude will be given to the testifier this
afternoon. Members, before I call on the ... we do have one person
requesting to testify, but before I call upon him, if Members and the ... Mr.
Fisher I guess you're the only guy in this chambers right now. If, if
you ... and Administration if you could put your pagers or cell phones to
the silent mode the Chair would appreciate that.
This afternoon Members we do have one person to testify. At this time I'd
like to call on Mr. Fisher.
(note: silence)

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. FISHER: Good afternoon, Council Members. My name is Tony Fisher and
I represent COMET. And I'm here to talk very briefly about BF-52 I
think it is, which is the idea of the fact that there are actually people out
there who are pretending to be homeowners and having a ... taking the
homeowner's exemption and are getting a $250 tax rate, and the truth of
the matter is they're not eligible for it.
I sat in the last meeting that we had on this, and I wrote a letter to the
Chair, Mr. Pontanilla, and I'd just like to quote a couple of things that are
in here.
The ... in the second paragraph clearly the concept of 270 days, your
MECO bill, your water bill would only yet add another law the people
ignore. Remember as we discussed, you only have to say once that you're
eligible and unlike the circuit breaker you are never asked again if you are
eligible.
There are two parts to this puzzle. The _ _ proof that a taxpayer is
eligible--but when I moved here I had to prove that--and the ongoing
eligibility. It seems as though the initial proof is being handled well
enough to not be an issue. However, the conversation at the previous
meeting seem to me to be centered on the idea how does one, one catch
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the person who moves out, rents out the property, and continues to pretend
that he is not aware of the effect of the status change relative to the
homeowner exemption and the lower ... and in general the solution seems
to be simple that all the discussion was somewhat wasted.
Twice a year property taxpayer receives a tax bill--and this is on the
newest one, but it's one that we've all received--the bottom of which is a
tax payment stub that you tear off. And it seem to me it would make a
great deal of sense to put a statement that says "I affirm that 1 am still
living in this property or on this property as my principal residence and
thus am entitled to the homeowner exemption". Provide a signature line.
And my belief is that most people would not wish to perjure themselves
and would fess up. Also was suggested at the beginning of the hearing
make the penalty something like triple the tax or some significant penalty.
Who cares whether he pays taxes here, votes here, or anywhere stays for
270 days. As far as I'm concerned all of that's nice information, but there
are people who live here 270 days of the year who are not ... who are in
fact registered to vote somebody ... somewhere else. Should get into all the
complexities of whether a person really is a ... eligible for this or not? And
it seems to me that it would be very simple to just take this tax bill and
take that piece on the bottom and add those words. And if you've seen the
newest--and I'm sure you all have--the newest property tax bills, there is
new ... there are new things on there that the people in Real Property Tax
Department did in fact put on in the most recent one which was paid in
August, and to put that kind of thing with the signature line puts
everybody on notice. And if somebody then writes on there yes, 1 am
eligible and 1 sign and so forth, and then is not eligible, you have the
absolute proof that somebody has perjure themselves. So it just seems like
such a simple no laws, no ordinances, no nothing. Just try it that way.
And the end of the letter goes on to say are there still gonna be cheats?
Are there still gonna be some people who do that? Of course. But this is
Maui. This is not ... and 1 won't even go into what city might be more apt
to do that on the mainland. But there certainly ... we don't do that on
Molokai, no.
There certainly enough 1 think there is a, an enormously greater impact on
the people. 1 know a person and recently told me that they were not aware
that they could not do that 'cause 1 was talking about this. They said
specifically 1 moved in, 1 was a homeowner, and 1 moved out, and rented
to somebody else, and 1 was not aware-MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
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MR. FISHER: --that I could not in fact continue this. And therefore it seems to
me to be very simple if we just put that on there that advises the people of
what the rules and regulations are, and let's try it for awhile and not make
a real big case out of this. And I was in the neighborhood today and I
noticed that this was on the agenda, and I really wanted to make ... come
and make some just some very brief comments from COMET and the
other folks. Bill could not be here today otherwise he would've also.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon,
Mr. Fisher. Thank you for being here.
MR. FISHER: Hello, Michael.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just for clarification we have three matters
dealing with property tax. Which-MR. FISHER: BF-52.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: BF-52, the first one.
MR. FISHER: Which is the one about that ... about the eligibility of homeowners.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
MR. FISHER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members, for Mr.
Fisher? Seeing none, thank you again for-MR. FISHER: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: At this time the Chair would like to recognize Member
Johnson.

ITEM NO. 52:

RESIDENCY
REQUIREMENTS
FOR
REAL
PROPERTY TAX HOMEOWNER'S EXEMPTION

(e.c. No. 07-229)
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, Members, this afternoon we do have three items
on our agenda. The first item this afternoon is BF-52, residency
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requirements for real property tax homeowner's exemption.
The
Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 07-229,
transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING SECTIONS 3.48.425 AND 3.48.450, MAUl COUNTY
CODE, PERTAINING TO REAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS".
The primary purpose of the proposed bill is to establish criteria to
ascertain a taxpayer's intent to reside in the County for the purposes of the
real property tax homeowner's exemption. The proposed bill also allows
the Director of Finance to request proof of residency and increases the
penalty for homeowners who fail to timely report a change in their status
that affects their exemption.
The Committee at its August 13, 2007, meeting considered the proposed
bill and discussed the advantages as well as the disadvantage ... advantages
of various criteria that could be used to prove a taxpayer's residency. The
Committee worked towards a specific list of documents that could be
verified which would serve as proof of the taxpayers intent. The final
result was that there is no document that will clearly prove taxpayer's
intent. There are loopholes and unintended consequences for each
document that was considered.
The original bill was based on the requirements for the City and County of
Honolulu's homeowner exemption program and was an attempt to
establish the same level ... level of verification to better secure Maui
County's homeowner exemption program.
Considering that the
application deadline for homeowner exemption for the Fiscal Year 2009 is
December 31 S\ 2007, it is imperative that this Committee make a
recommendation to the Council as soon as possible to assist the
Administration in their efforts to enforce Homeowner exemption and
classifications.
At this time the Chair will ... would like to call upon Mr. Young for
comments.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, Members.
The ordinance proposed before you is the same ordinance that
Administration has requested in regards to just providing a little bit more
stability in terms of proof for those taxpayers seeking to apply for the
homeowner's exemption. It is similar in nature and language to that of
what is required in the City and County of Honolulu as that was the basis
from which the ordinance requirement was drafted. It's only intended as a
means to safeguard proof of qualification for the homeowner's exemption
at the time that the taxpayer applies for the homeowner's exemption,
which is only on the initial. It does provide for a little bit more
documentary evidence forwarded to the Real Property Tax Division in
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case they need to investigate for any claims of non-occupancy for those
properties that are claiming the homeowner's exemption.
The
Administration feels that this is a good ordinance that would go a long
ways to safeguard the high value that the Council has afforded to
homeowners and the benefit given to homeowners in the real property tax
system.
Myself and Mr. Scott Teruya from the Real Property Tax Division are
available for any questions or inquiries from any of the Members. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Young. Before we open up questions
for the Department, Members, we received an October the 1ih, on
October the 1ih, 2007, a response from Corporation Counsel, Mr. Brian
Moto, in regards to the questions that we posed upon the Corporation
Counsel. Members, if you recall the first question that we had asked was
may the Council establish a durational residency requirement for the
Homeowner's [sic} classification and exemption. If so, is there a
minimum or maximum length of time that may be required? And the
second question posed to the Department, may the Council require an
individual or individuals to prove ... provide proof of the filing of an
income tax return as a resident of the State of Hawaii with a reported
address in the County when applying for the Homeowner classification
and exemption?
At this time the Chair would like to call on Mr. Brian Moto to provide us
with his analysis in regards to these two questions. Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Good afternoon, Chairman and Members. Brian Moto, Corporation
Counsel. There is in your binders a memorandum from me to the
Committee Chair, dated October 12, 2007. As noted by the Committee
Chair, the memorandum is in response to two questions posed by the
Committee Chair arising out of discussions in your last meeting. I won't
read the opinion verbatim. I'll just summarize it briefly for this meeting.
In response to the first question regarding whether a durational residency
requirement for Homeowner classification and exemption was valid or
not, the short answer is that we believe there is a material risk that a
durational residency requirement for the Homeowner classification and
exemption would be found to violate the equal protection clause of the
constitution.
The memorandum starts discussion of that topic by noting that under the
Hawaii Constitution and under the Hawaii Revised Statutes, the power and
functions regarding real property taxation were transferred to the counties
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BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
October 15, 2007

and that this transfer of power included the power to set exemptions from
real property taxation.
However, the opinion goes on to note, from page 3 on forward, that the
power of counties to grant or repeal real property tax exemptions is subject
to constitutional limitations, including the equal protection clauses of the
Hawaii and u.s. Constitutions.
We note that in evaluating equal protection claims, the Hawaii Supreme
Court had stated that it will use the rational basis test to determine whether
a requirement is valid or not.
Now we note that the Hawaii Supreme Court has not had occasion to
decide specifically the constitutionality of a durational residence [sic}
requirement for real property tax home exemptions. That particular kind
of case has never arisen and been appealed before the Supreme Court.
And the real reason is because none of the counties as to date adopted a
durational residency requirement for home exemption purposes so there's
never been any litigation to raise the issue.
The opinion does note that ... and at least one other state, in this case the
State of Florida, the Supreme Court there reviewed the constitutionality
under the Florida constitution of a durational residency requirement for a
Florida home exemption, and to make short of their analysis the Florida
Court there found that there was no rational basis for distinguishing
between bona fide residents ... in this case of more than five consecutive
years as opposed to those who were in Florida for less than five years.
Therefore the Florida court in that instance found that the homestead
exemption violated the equal protection clause of the Florida Constitution.
In light of this we think that there certainly is a risk that if a durational
home exemption requirement were adopted in Maui County, and if that
requirement, that durational requirement were challenged, that there is a
risk that it would be found unconstitutional on equal protection grounds.

The second question posed by the Committee related to whether a
requirement could be imposed upon individuals to provide proof of the
filing of an income tax return as a resident of the State of Hawaii with a
reported address in the County for purposes of applying for the
Homeowner classification and exemption and to that question our short
answer is yes. That the Council may by ordinance impose such a
requirement. In fact there is already in the Maui County Code a provision
that allows the Finance Director to require the submission of a copy of a
Federal or State income tax return for the circuit breaker tax credit, and
that's been on the books now for some years.
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Moreover, the memorandum notes that the County ofKauai, the County of
Hawaii, and the City and County of Honolulu already have ordinances or
authorizing their respective directors of finance to require submission of a
resident income return as a ... as proof of qualification for a home
exemption. Maui County is the only county that does not have such a
provision authorizing the Director of Finance to require an income tax
return to be submitted.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Moto. At this time the Committee
Chair would entertain questions for Corporation Counsel first. Member
Anderson followed by Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you Mr. Moto for
that summary that made it easy to follow. My question is what does
actually the equal protection clause say? I mean how is it worded?
MR. MOTO: Uh ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Moto.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I can understand what-MR. MOTO: Right. It ... it, it appears in a number of different places, among
others, in the 14th Amendment of the United States Constitution, which
basically the 14th amendment of course requires that states in effect
provide and abide by the kinds of rights that are applicable to the Federal
government under the Bill of Rights and the U. S. Constitution. And the
14th Amendment requires that states not pass laws that deny their citizens
the equal protection of the laws. And that phrase "equal protection" of
course has a very, very long litigation history, and has been applied in
many, many different context. It has been applied in the context of tax
litigation, and the ability for states to differentiate between classes of
people in regards to its tax laws. There are not a whole lot of cases in the
area of real property taxation and the equal protection clause. The Florida
case is cited in the memo because it's one of the few and it happens to be
on the subject of home exemption so that made it an appropriate case to
cite. You'll find in the memo a footnote relating to a U. S. Supreme Court
case dealing with an Alaskan dividend distribution scheme. Alaska had
this, has this program where it provides dividends to its residents from the
oil tax revenues, and the Alaska legislature originally decided that you
would get more of a dividend if. .. the longer you live in the state. And that
was struck down by the U. S. Supreme Court as a violation of equal
protection. Basically the equal protection clause is designed to prevent the
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creation of a second class of citizens. Everyone should ... there's only one
class of United States citizens and that's everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I'm just paraphrasing from my own
memory, but it says something to the effect that all citizens should be
afforded equal protection under the law. Is that basically-MR. MOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --what it says?
MR. MOTO: Very good.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so in application to what we're talking
about here that means that just because a citizen lives on Maui three
months out of the year doesn't ... doesn't mean that he should have less
protection or less rights than somebody who lives fulltime. Is that how it's
applied in this case?
MR. MOTO: Yes, I would just tweak your summary a little bit by saying that of
course we are talking here about distinguishing among residents, okay.
And so basically the way we're reading the equal protection cases that
have been published we think that the, the courts would scrutinize very
closely any attempt to discriminate among residents in terms of tax
benefits. So assuming you are a resident, and that's a whole subject, you
know, what constitutes a resident but, but-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What does? (chuckled)
MR. MOTO: (chuckled) Mainly intent to reside, but basically intent is probably
the most important factor. But assuming that you are a resident, courts do
not like to see, unless there's a very important and compelling reason,
distinctions made between residents and it's going ... the burden is gonna
be on the government to show why one, you know, one resident is entitled
to home exemption, but another person who is also a resident is not
entitled to that exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Yes, thank you, Brian. In an earlier
memorandum, this is in our binder. It's sent from Ed Kushi, Corporation
Counselor Deputy Corp. Counsel, on December 9th , 2003. And basically,
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you know, I'm questioning the section on page 2 where he talks about
qualified resident and then this would be under 201 G definition under the
State, and they have several I guess components of the definition. Number
one it's a, it's citizen of the United States or resident alien. Two, is at
least 18 years of age. Three, is domiciled in the state and shall physically
reside in the dwelling unit purchased or rented under this chapter. And
four, in the case of purchase of real property in fee simple or leasehold,
has a gross income sufficient to qualify for the loan to finance the
purchase.
Now, I understand you know it's a little bit different for a 201G because
they're looking at qualifications for the people who may be eligible to
reside or may be considered for residents in that particular type of project,
but I'm very interested in the word "domicile" as opposed to "intent to
reside". To me intent to reside implies that you have not yet resided here,
and yet domicile means that you are physically here and it's in the, in this
definition it says domicile shall ... you shall physically reside in the
dwelling unit, you know, I mean which means that you are physically
here. So within the language of the ordinance as we've been presented,
we still have that intent to reside clause that's a component of it. So could
you comment about the possible consideration of using the word
domiciled as opposed to intent to reside?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MR. MOTO: Let me begin by saying that the opinion that was done on the 201G
purposes I, I.. .you noticed that I didn't cite or get into that subject in this
memorandum that I just summarized for you, and that's because that, that
memorandum really arose out of a different context and about housing
opportunities, and whether one can differentiate between classes of people
in, in offering housing to people. And because the tax ... because the cases
all sort of differentiate among themselves, I focus mostly on the tax
litigation cases. And, and in there all I can say is that you ... almost all the
legislation I see is focused on the principle of residency. And in part
I. .. it's connected to the fact that one of the elements that jurisdiction seem
to rely upon a lot that ... let's say local government seems to rely upon a lot
in order to determine whether an applicant before them should qualify is
they look towards the state definition of residency, especially that
definition that's in the tax, state tax laws. So that's why our sister
counties, for example, all of them say that one of the documents that
Director of Finance can review to determine whether you qualify for
homeowner's exemption is whether you file a, a state or a state return as a
resident. So everyone keys off of that definition of resident not domicile.
And I wish I could get more into the subject of domicile but I.. .frankly I
draw a blank there. I'd, I'd have to think about that term and how it is
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used in different context. I'm just not prepared, to be frank, to discuss it
right now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, and I know that we had
asked for an opinion with regard to who could qualify to get into housing
in terms of their qualifications. So therefore that was the definition that
focused on that aspect. And yet when we're looking at the definition of
you're saying residency and qualified resident, to me I... you know it's
difficult for me to differentiate between the two because for me intent to
reside is not the same as already residing.
And also the presentation of a tax form that you filed with the State of
Hawaii does it require that it also be from the County ofMaui? Because I
mean somebody could live on Oahu and own six residences here and come
to them occasionally and still present a Hawaii State tax return, but to me
the question would then come in about the domicile what is their physical
address or domicile that's listed on the tax form when they file it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman. This will only answer a part of your comment, but
the City and County of Honolulu, for example, in their tax code requires
that not only may you be required as an applicant to provide a resident
income tax return, a Hawaii resident income tax return, but it has to show
a, an address within the City and County. So that ... and I don't think
that's ... some of the other counties don't have that particular requirement
there, but that's something which could be done.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it would not be out of keeping then
for us to include in our particular statute that we want to stipulate that not
only do they show a residency in the I guess the County of Maui with an
address that's here but that, that same address coincide with the property
that is being given the exemption is that correct?
MR. MOTO: In short answer yes. And I, and I guess the main point I... which is
also made in the memo, is that currently right now Maui County has the
most ... 1 don't know how you would-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Liberal.
MR. MOTO: Some would say general, some would say liberal, some would say
open-ended law when it comes to home exemptions. Because compared
to all the other counties, all the other counties go into fairly detailed about
what it is you have to show in order to get this home exemption such as
resident income tax return ... (end of tape IA) ... just as well you know
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you can apply for home exemption and this you get a $300,000 and ... but
that's, that's about it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. MOTO: And it doesn't ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and my final question, Mr. Chair,
would be that if let's say there is a person that files and they produce
evidence that yes, they are in fact filing a State income tax form that states
as their residence for which they're asking for the homeowner's
exemption, and that is stated as their residence, same address on the form,
if they do that is there any requirement that we could make that
irrespective of! guess number of years or residence ... like let's say if you
picked a target amount ... let' s say they paid minimum tax is what $300?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sixty.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sixty dollars. Well, okay, so $60. But even if
they ... if we put on a homeowner exemption that said it had a financial
component to it, let's say you could get a homeowner's exemption
provided that in past years you paid "x" number of dollars in real property
tax--Iet's say $1,000 or $500--is that also going to run into the same
problems that a residency requirement would run into because it's a means
test or it's a test of how much you've paid in? My reason for asking this,
Mr. Chair, is that essentially if you were here a short period of time you
would have paid in a smaller amount of money. If you were a longer
period of time, which again goes to duration but technically the amount of
money that you've actually paid in real property tax would be like setting
a minimum threshold before you could actually qualify for homeowner
exemption. I don't know if that would meet the test or not. But that is
another way to I guess back into what we're trying to do.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MR. MOTO: That is an interesting fact scenario. And, and to summarize the
ideal concept would be you'd get a home exemption depending upon
whether ... depending on whether and how much real property tax you have
paid in previous years. And point number one is that I'm not aware of any
cases that are directly on point that would, you know, give the definitive
answer on this. Because it would differentiate among people or ... I think a
good argument could be made that it's ... should not be treated like a
durational residency requirement. So I think there's a chance that you
could probably defend it. I'm not making policy comment about adopting
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or not, but 1 think it probably could be distinguished from a durational
residency requirement.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that was just one of the ideas that 1 had
about ... 1 guess when 1 say stakeholder 1 mean somebody that hasn't, you
know, they've been here, they're invested, but they've also ... because the
homeowner exemption is 1 view it it's a privilege that you gain over time
just simply by residing here, maintaining a fulltime residence here. So 1
see it as a benefit that is directly related to your, your 1 guess role as a
stakeholder. And for somebody to say no 1 haven't paid a dime in taxes,
just as the same way in Alaska, you know, 1 mean frankly 1 don't see that
as a stakeholder. So it's like people coming on to a retirement system or
whatever you have to vest after so many years. So to me this is a way of
saying maybe you should invest also in this way. So 1 just throw that out
for consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson.
questions for Corporation Counsel? Member Baisa.

Members any more

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, Chair, thank you. 1 just want to get a big
perspective on this question and that is in the total scheme of property tax
revenues, how much is lost to homeowner exemptions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Maybe a question for the Department of Finance. Mr.
Young.
MR. KALBERT: Ms. Baisa that's a very big question because there's two
moving parts related to that calculation. First of all, the homeowner's
exemption is $300,000 and the homeowner's tax rate is about $2 and ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Two dollars.
MR. KALBERT: Two dollars and some change. 1 think it's $2. So if you looked
at it just that basically you would think well it's only $2 for every
thousand of $300,000 worth of exemption six hundred bucks, six hundred
dollars. But actually the question is a lot bigger than that because if
you're not in the homeowner's class you would not get the homeowner's
exemption. If you're not in the homeowner's class you would actually be
in the improved residential class and that class is taxed at a rate of about
$5. So just to be a homeowner. .. just to be classified as a homeowner, the
exemption aside, just to be classed as a homeowner is very large, much
larger than the benefit you receive from the homeowner's exemption
because that's about $3 per thousand for your value. That's much bigger
than you receive from the benefit of homeowner's exemption just to be in
that class. There's approximately ... approximately about 20,000, 22,000
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parcels in the County of Maui that are homeowner classification. So it's
difficult to say how many of those should be, you know, they may not
have the proof required to meet the standards of the Council desires for
residential duration. But that represents a very sizeable portion of the
entire Maui County parcel that's in the homeowner's class. That if they
did not have that classification they would be in the improved residential
class and subject to the higher tax rate.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. I probably wanna hear the millions,
but I realize that, you know, it's difficult to just come up with numbers
when you're asked like this. But I think it's important as we have this
discussion that people understand why this is an important move. Because
if you're not entitled to a homeowner's exemption and you get one, of
course it affects the total revenues and then of course they have to come
from someplace else. And I think that's the relevancy of why we're doing
what we're doing. I know sometimes people wonder why we sit here
discussing things and I think it's important that they understand why.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Chairman.
Question for
Corporation Counsel. So from your comments which relates to your
response from the questions from the Committee Chair, you're okay with
the authorization of giving the Director of Finance the authority I guess to
request additional proof of residency you're fine with that?
MR. MOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And you're taking a conservative approach if I
may use that or a cautious approach with regards to the residential
durationcy [sic} policy.
MR. MOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Can you offer us an alternative? Because I can
understand the need, at least just from my mind, to give the benefit or
some type of benefit to those who've been here the longest. Like for
example our kamaaina they've been here ... this County was built on the
backs of our, our, our kamaaina. So is there something ... some language
that you can recommend as a compromise without putting our County in I
guess what you would deem as a risky position should we allow for this
residential duration?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
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MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, I.. .no. I'm ... other than those ideas that are, have
already been mentioned and are reflected in the draft bill that's before you,
no I don't have ... I'm sorry I don't have any new ideas. Let me say though
that right now, given the State of the law in Maui County, almost any
additional requirements you might impose would be ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Subject to challenge.
MR. MOTO: No. Would, would ... would help to further define who qualifies or
not. 'Cause right now Maui County has such an open-ended test for
resident. You know the Finance Director has no authority to, to confront
someone and say you know I would like to have proof that you are a
resident and deserve this homeowner's exemption because there's nothing
in the County Code that specifically authorizes them to do that. But his
counterparts on Kauai and the Big Island they do have that right and
ability. So ... and ... and, and typically what jurisdictions do is they will
come up with a variety of documents and tests to determine whether
someone should qualify or not because ... and the reason .... one reason why
they come up with several tests is because they know that sometimes
people might have a tough time you know ... people that you would want to
help may not be able to provide some of the requirements that you impose.
For example, not everyone files an income tax return because they might
be very low income in which case you're not required to file a Hawaii
income tax return. Nevertheless some of those people live here and own,
and own their own homes. So that's why you see these laws written in a
way that allows Director then turn to other indicia of homeownership and
occupancy such as have you ... can you show that you lived here for 270
days for example that which is a test that Honolulu uses.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So therefore the ... a type of evidence can be
provided is tax, a tax return.
MR. MOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So if, if.. . and if there's no tax return there's
some other alternatives.
MR. MOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So does the other counties have this proposed
durational residency which is, which is used as a criteria for someone to
get in an exemption?
MR. MOTO: Honolulu certainly does.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: They do.
(note: silence)
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And Honolulu is how many years they're
required or what is their durational residency? Two hundred and seventy
days as well?
MR. MOTO: Two hundred seventy calendar days of a calendar year. They also
look at whether you're registered to vote in the city or whether you're a
military personnel stationed by orders in the, in the county.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And have they had several challenges that you
know of?
MR. MOTO: Not that I'm aware of, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. The Chair would like to provide some
information. On page 2 of the proposed bill, you know, we do have the
five criteria's that Mr. Moto had mentioned although not going to number
4 as well as number 5. So for your information, Members, on page 2.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. In looking these
five criteria's over, and listening to Mr. Moto and his dissertation on this,
the question I have is really not just so much we bringing this bill forward
but enforcement. Again, we have in the past, Mr. Chair, brought up many
good ordinances but had the lack of willpower or the lack of ability,
manpower or whatever it may be, to enforce it. Do you think Mr. Young
if something like this came out you would be able to enforce this to make
sure that ... you know I don't want you out there and spying between
bushes to find out if somebody's a resident or not. But I mean if we do
put this forward would this be enforceable? Would you have the means to
enforce to make sure that these people are residents as whatever the
criteria's are here?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Young.
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MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Victorino. Yes, because we're not ... we don't have the
resources as you presented to be out in the field looking through bushes
you know investigating, knocking on doors to, to make sure that people
are actually owner-occupant on every single homeowner's exemption.
The, this ordinance would go a long ways with just a little bit of more
teeth on the part of the Administration to enforce to require those
documents for the taxpayer to show us the proof that they deserve the
benefit. We currently require, when they apply for the homeowner's
exemption, that they fill out a form and they sign an attestment, and they
do that only once, the date that they apply for the homeowner's
exemption. This ordinance would nearly allow for us to require at the
same time that they do that, to provide other substantial document or
documents that would give substantial proof or confidence that we are
giving the exemption to someone who rightfully deserves it or for who the
ordinance was intended. It also gives that other component, as Mr. Moto
mentioned, that should there be an instance where field investigation is
required or maybe known to the Department that there might be a potential
conflict in the claim for exemption that it gives us the opportunity to
request the follow up document. It should not result in any additional
resources that we currently have now because it's nearly to provide the
additional document that is already being requested or that could already
be fit into the existing process as it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I guess that's the important
point in this is that we have the means to enforce whatever we bring
forward 'cause all too often we do bring things out and there's no
enforceability, no mechanism to enforce it and so we're back to square
one. And if this does nothing but put people on notice that we want to
have the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth when you buy a
home and you're gonna live there or not, then I think it's all for the, for the
better of the County of Maui. So as long as you feel like Mr. Young you
guys can enforce it and able to put it together, then I have no questions and
very comfortable with this at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Victorino. Members, any more
questions? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And just for
clarification, Mr. Moto. Your reference to the 270 days, how is that not
considered durational?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Moto.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Because it does indicate a length of time that an
individual would be in, in their home.
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MR. MOTO: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So how, how-MR. MOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --does it differ?
MR. MOTO: Yeah. It's different in the sense that it, it's not a rule ... at least this
rule you find it in Honolulu. In that particular case it's not a rule that says
that residents who have lived in Honolulu for a certain length of time will
be treated better or differently from other Honolulu residents. What it is
it's a rule that says in order for us to determine whether you are a resident
or not in the first place, we have to determine whether there's clear intent
to reside in the city and that ... and we will look at various types of proof
along those lines. One of which is physical... whether you have actually
been in the city for a certain number of days. In this case they, they chose
nine months, 270 calendar days. So it's, it's not really distinguishing
between residents. What it is is it's a rule that's attempting to determine
whether you are a resident in the first place. And it's not a ... by the way
it's not an exclusive rule even if you were to flunk that particular test
under the Honolulu's ordinance. You could still ... under their law you
could still qualify as a home ... for home exemption if you could convince
the Director of Finance that you adequately met some of the other tests,
and ultimately it's up to the Finance Director to sort of do a balancing and
judgment about, you know, looking at all of the facts, the totality of the
circumstances whether in fact you qualify or not.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo.
questions? Member Hokama.

Members, any more

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just a question on the mailing address. Is
it Finance's idea that a mailing address is sufficient or should we say that
it be a specific street address that could also serve as a mailing address? I
mean guys who use a post office box is a mailing address. That doesn't
convince anyone that they are a resident.
MR. YOUNG: That's, that's a very good point, Chair Hokama. The language
that's proposed in this ordinance was taken from the ordinances for the
City and County of Honolulu. Perhaps to address your concern, if the
Committee so chose, you know, it could be a mailing address identical to
the property where the home exemption is being claimed or ...
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: ... or residence. The Administration is open to any suggestions
or revisions that the Council may provide. Our main concern is just to
provide the additional evidence necessary to grant the home exemption.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Chairman, I would ask if maybe your
Staff can work with appropriate resources to come up with a clearer option
for us regarding the mailing address. I would like to tie it into the actual
property if possible that also serves as a mailing address.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So when you say actual property the TMK?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean if we're gonna say 200 South High Street is
my mailing address and I'm gonna claim 200 South High Street as my
residence and claim for the exemption, you know, that's easier to, to ... to
me, one, a valided or not validate. 'Cause if I use a post office address
that's a mailing address but I don't reside at the post office. I'm more
concerned about using this information to substantiate or invalidate the
claim of residency.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Street address.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be my ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, on that, on that portion then, you know, for me
since someone is asking for something, yeah, based on their desire to get
the exemption, so under the ... page 1, Chairman, under (D) which is the
penalty portion, if you lied you're perjuring yourself and you're trying to
commit fraud against the County. So why would we look at $200 or the
amount of taxes whichever is less? If they're willing to commit perjury
and fraud against the County, then we should put penalties that address
that level of what I consider crime. You know I'm looking for the
maximum punishment and penalty against those that are, if anything,
trying to have someone else pay their share of taxes, more than their share
of taxes. And no sympathies on the, on those kind of people who trying to
escape their responsibilities. So why would we give them the lesser
punishment? Mr. Moto, do you have any comments that could maybe
help us understand why it's presented in this manner?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MR. MOTO: The section cited on the page 1 of the bill is ... let me make the
observation that it's strictly speaking ... it doesn't, it's not targeted towards
the making of a false or inaccurate application. And there may be another
section which does address that. I'm just, I'm ... I don't recall off the top
of my head. It seems to me this particular paragraph that you see in the
bill what it ... the original intent as I think it was, was to require that
people ... in theory what suppose to happen is people are suppose to come
forward and say ... if they no longer qualify they suppose to tell you right?
They're suppose to tell you this is not my home anymore. So I do not
actually qualify for this one or I. .. and whether that happens or not I don't
know but ... and so this, this, this penalty provision was meant to address
that situation where people sort of omit to tell you. Oh, you know, I
forgot. I meant to do that but you know what? It slipped my mind. And
so that's the ... it's that type of situation.
In terms of fraudulent filings I think we, we can take a look at that. I'm
not prepared to get into details on that, but I think that might be a separate
provision of law.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Chairman, I would ask that your
Staff might wanna review with Mr. Moto that second scenario. 'Cause on
the first scenario of the way it was I would say that use to be the
community we use to have 'cause that's the kind of people we use to have.
And I recall those days when people were very upfront, and if they forgot
to pay their bill in a restaurant they would go back and pay their bill. That
was what we use to have, yeah. That is not the community we have today.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, I just wanted one clarification to our
esteem Council Chair. It is my experience that whenever ruraL .. and
there's some areas in rural Maui in Maui County that do not have mail
delivery so you would not have a mailing address at your TMK. Also as
new subdivision comes on line, a lot of times mail boxes are not issued
until a certain number of homes are built in that subdivision. So that's
something that you might wanna consider also that if we're going to make
that or eliminate the mailing address or make sure that it's really a mailing
address to a street location that there are times when that may not even be
available so my ... 'cause I know for a fact my son when he first moved up
here to Ohia it took them almost six months before enough homes were in
there to put mail boxes in so they'd get mail delivery and he was forced to
use a post office box. But he was a homeowner and he was living there.
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So something to be aware of that either the rural or new subdivision
sometimes that becomes a real challenge, Council Chair Hokama, and so I
just want everybody to understand that if we put something like that we
don't want to have that unintended consequence. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Young. Comments to that?
MR. YOUNG: Well, only that, Mr. Chair, that's, that's another good point. And
that's why in the proposal or the ordinance it would be good if there are
other avenues of proof that are afforded to the taxpayer so that someone
caught in the situation, as Mr. Victorino mentions, could rely on some
other form of proof that the ordinance provides to meet the threshold.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Before I call on Member Anderson I'd just
like to provide some information in regards to Chapter 3.48, Real Property
Falsification or
Tax, page 13 of 66, 3.48.072 Violation
misrepresentation.
According to this it's any person falsifying or
misrepresenting any information in meeting the requirements of this
chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor. So, Mr. Hokama, there
is a violation clause in the real property tax ordinance.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe Corp. Counsel can tell us what a misdemeanor
means, Chairman, as well as the financial and jail time involved.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, Corporation Counsel.
MS. HEELY: Mahalo, Chair. Misdemeanor maximum possible penalty one year
in jail and/or two thousand dollar fine. And interestingly enough within
the Maui County Code it makes reference to Section 231-12 saying the
Tax Appeals Board, and we have a board of review, has the jurisdiction to
hear misdemeanors and cite penalties should a taxpayer violate any
provision of the Code, i.e., not claiming a proper exemption.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But that is separate from the penalty we can
impose on the actual property tax that is owed the County wouldn't that be
correct? 'Cause that's in addition to the penalties of the property tax that
is actually owed the County-MS. HEELY: In addition to.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --and penalties on that tax itself.
MS. HEELY: Yes, in addition to. Because within the Code it cites civil penalties
but within fraudulent ... attesting to something that would be a criminal
penalty a misdemeanor-- 21 -
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And to-MS. HEELY: Subject to civil as well as criminal jail time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Right.
And my understanding is to ensure
compliance and fulfillment of that portion we would place a lien on the
property. So no matter what unl. .. , if we don't get paid we have this lien
to eventually if need be dispose of the property and collect what is due the
County.
MS. HEELY: That would be of, of. .. an option available.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: An option or is that a requirement the lien?
MS. HEELY: An option should the penalty not be paid and collection not be
done then that would be an optional, option to the Director of Finance to
proceed with liening on the property.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. So my concern is for
the ... and I think as Member Victorino mentioned, my concern is for
somebody who's just bought a property and hasn't lived here, you know, a
whole calendar year in order to have filed an income tax return, but yet
they would qualify for the exemption, how do we deal with that? How do
we not exclude them?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Either Corporation Counselor Finance.
MR. YOUNG: Yeah, all of the items listed in the proposed ordinances are, you
know, alternatives to ... alternative test. Whether or not you wanna add
some that may accommodate ... (end of tape IB) ... an area out there
that may not be possible. I do believe that for the majority of people that
apply they will fall into one of these ... one of these tests. If there are any
other one's by all means Administration supports including as many or as
a ... any additional one's that you feel might be necessary or would give
more flexibility to the Administration in terms of distributing these
exemptions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I'm totally on the same page with you
Mr. Young. You're talking about the five tests under item (C) on page 2.
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MR. YOUNG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so that ... (pause) ... 1 really don't know
how to address that because I'm asking how we can put something in that
would not exclude somebody. And if they've, you know, if they've just
moved ... are you saying that mailing address in the County is enough if
they can't provide an income tax return because they haven't been here a
calendar year?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counselor Mr. Young.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman. The ... the bill that's ... as it is written on page 2,
those five listed items that are there currently are not strictly
speaking ... absolutely required in all circumstances.
They are, the
Director certainly has the ability to ask for production of under the bill that
would authorize the Director of Finance to require or an applicant to
produce evidence of, of these five things. But if for some reason or other
a person is unable to provide one or more of 'em it doesn't ... it's not
necessarily fatal to their case. Again, it would depend upon the totality of
facts and circumstances because as was discussed before there are some
people who will just not be able to provide a resident income tax return
because they don't ... they're not required by law to file any. But this is
written in a way that they still could possibly qualify provided they were
able to demonstrate other proof of residency and occupancy of the home
as their principal home.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Like showing that they've paid their electric
bill for six months under their name.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson. And 1 think we've had that discussion the
last time that-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. YOUNG: --you know the Department ... we, we do look at those type thing,
mailing address, you know or a utility bill, or a telephone bill or-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so just so I'm clear because I'm a little
foggy here, we talked about durational that you can't ... you know you
can't put a time limit on somebody, but yet we have here as one, as one of
the qualifiers occupancy of a home in the County for more than 270
calendar days of the calendar year. So is that a conflict with what you told
us earlier or am 1 misinterpreting it?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Director.
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MR. YOUNG: Was that a question for me, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think probably Mr. Moto since-MR. YOUNG: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --since it was our discussion with him.
MR. MOTO: I'm sorry can you re ... , rephrase the question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, one of the criteria to show the intent
to reside in the County thereby qualifying you for this exemption is the
very first one that says occupancy of a home in the County for more than
270 calendar days of a calendar year.
MR. MOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so ... and before I ask the question, I
just wanna throw into the mix that throughout the County Code we have
terms, long term residential development, long term residential basis, or
long term residential. Those are terms that we use throughout the County
Code in defining various things. And it says it means occupancy of a
dwelling unit by an owner, family, lessee, or tenant for 180 days or more
per, per year.
MR. MOTO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So doesn't this qualifier speak to the
durational issue that you spoke to ... spoke about earlier that ...
MR. MOTO: Uh ... no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I'm confused.
MR. MOTO: I...I tried to address this in the context of the question raised by
Councilmember Mateo. I do think one can ... for constitutional analysis
purposes I think one can distinguish between the kind of provision that
you see here in the bill and that you also see in the City and County of
Honolulu ordinances from the type of provisions that got struck down in
Florida. In Florida the law was quite different. It said that ... it really ... it
gave a bigger home exemption to those who lived in longer, a longer
period of time. And if you lived less than five years in Florida even
- 24-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
October 15, 2007

though you ... even though you are a resident and no one disputes that, if
you live, had lived there for less than five, been a resident for less than
five years you got only a $5,000 home exemption and that's what got
struck down.
But this is really getting at something else here. This, these are tests that
are being used to determine whether you are a resident at all. And, and
not only that, but the test, this, this 270 day test is not even exclusive. In
other words even if you were to flunk that test it doesn't mean that you are
disqualified automatically. It depends on whether you could show other
indications of, of qualification.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. MOTO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for explaining that. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson.
followed by Member Medeiros.

Member Hokama

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm glad we have Mr. Teruya with Mr.
Young today. You know it's my experience there's no perfect law,
Chairman. So even with this exemption I would say we will have certain
individuals or families that would fall through the cracks for the
exemption. And it's basically because of the calendar we have and the
timing we require of agencies and departments to close so that we can
conduct the business of the County regarding filing of exemptions and
what they're gonna claim for, the review, assessment hearings on ... and
appeals, and then an eventual certification of real property taxes so
Council can eventually make budgetary decisions and enact a new fiscal
year budget. So there's gonna be cracks in the calendar year where
although you may, might just be a misfortune of time that you purchase or
move in and, and know you're a homeowner but you're not gonna be in
that category because the calendar of how we have set deadlines to reach
decisions for the following year's requirements cannot to me ... and I don't
know how we're gonna do the budget if we're not gonna go with certified
numbers. For the Department to be able to give us specific dates and
numbers for us to make those decisions is part of the inherent system we
have, and I have yet to find something that can address to capture those
that will fall through the cracks. Now it's not a perfect system, but I have
yet to find anyone propose a system that can address those specific issues
that they face on a daily operational challenge. So unless Mr. Teruya and
Mr. Young can tell us another way to address those that have a issue with
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or a concern that a homeowner for a balance of a fiscal calendar year will
not be able to get that category because of the timing, I don't know how
else we're gonna do it gentlemen unless you have some silver bullet to
offer us this afternoon.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Comments Department?
MR. YOUNG: Sorry, Mr. Chair, Chairman Hokama. I have no idea on how to
craft an ordinance to catch everyone in every possible scenario. I do
believe this ordinance would go a long way and we would be pretty close
and it could be made closer if there's other oppor..., other criteria that
could be used to exemplify. But I agree with Mr. Hokama that we
would ... would be ... it would be an impossible challenge to create
something that's gonna catch everybody to the satisfaction that we would
need to. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. First of all for Mr.
Moto, I just wanted some clarification on your memo under Roman
Number II.A. What, what does the word on the first sentence, the last
word ... what is the significance of material? Is that a legal term?
MR. MOTO: Yeah ... 1.. .yes. And material means that it's a ... not, not trivial
basically that's all that means. And I guess it's a habit of mine. It's a
term that you often find in the area of finance and securities because in
order to make sure that you don't defraud people or mislead them you are
required to disclose all material facts so as not to make the disclosure
misleading. And by using that term in this context all I'm saying is that
there certainly is a, a real possibility or risk that a court would strike down
a durational residence requirement if it were adopted for the home
exemption purposes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Okay, thank you.
And for the ... the
Department, the Director of Finance, on page 2 as we've been discussing
of the proposed ordinance, the five tests which we have heard a lot of
questions on that, you know, some people are not gonna be able to meet
these five tests and so forth. Let me first ask you before discussing those
five tests ... 'cause I know people that live in remote parts of East Maui
that don't have any of this. So the ... they don't have utilities so they don't
pay any utilities. (chuckled) You know they don't register to vote so they
don't have that proof. They don't file income tax because for reasons that
was identified by Mr. Moto. So I'm wondering how, how we do this if
you have people like that? I know we can't figure out everything. But let
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me ask you this, to be qualified as a homeowner you have to own the
home is that correct?
MR. YOUNG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. What happens to property where
people own the home and not the property?
MR. YOUNG: If it's a lease arrangement that's typical. They're still afforded
the homeowner's exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Even though they don't own the property?
MR. YOUNG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So in your real property tax records,
it shows who the registered owner of the property is is that not correct?
MR. YOUNG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So why don't we just use that to
determine if the person living there is the registered owner?
MR. YOUNG: Well, because the reason why the ... you want the homeowner's
exemption to be an attestment of the taxpayer is because you could own
property and not live there. You could rent it out and then you would not
be afforded the homeowner's exemption. So in your district, Councilor
Medeiros ... you know Mr. Teruya tells me that there are, there are
instances where people do apply for the homeowner's exemption and as
you say they may not have a mailing address on site, they may not have
utilities there, they may be off the grid, and they are still afforded the
opportunity, you know, to whatever requirement or proof that they can
provide that does demonstrate that they are in fact living on the property
that they own they are afforded the homeowner's exemption. Again,
we're not trying to make it more punitive or difficult for people to get the
homeowner's exemption. Just merely to tighten up that who we are giving
it to. And also, you know, we would point out that the catchall for people
is still afforded them in the way of appeal because the Board of Appeals is
specifically to address the classification issue and valuation issue for the
property. So any taxpayer that may feel that they were aggrieved or feel
that they need to could've fi ... , could appeal to the, to the Board of
Review for that classification and the homeowner's exemption, and that's
not stated in this section of the proposed amended ordinance. It is, it is
under the authority in the Code granted to the Board of Appeal.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So if it goes to appeal, right, to the
Board of Appeal, and the reason it's going there is because they don't
have any of this five to show documentation that'll prove that they live on
the property, they're the owner, and we can't figure out what else to say,
how would the Board of Appeals do it any differently? I mean would they
like take witnesses in that, yeah, I know this guy lives out there. He lives
in that house and ... so it would require witnesses?
MR. YOUNG: It wouldn't require witnesses, but I do know that frequently a lot
of cases are at the Board of Appeals do and they ... the claimant does bring
in witnesses short of having to provide any other documentary evidence.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, okay. Corp. Counsel can you add to
that anything?
MR. MOTO: Yes, Mr. Chairman. The Board of Review will receive any relevant
and material evidence that a taxpayer wants to submit to prove their case.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MOTO: So if a resident ... if a taxpayer says you know what? I, I, I live
there. I deserve a homeowner's exemption. They're allowed to provide
testimony in a form of, you know, from witnesses or documents or other
(inaudible) and it's up to the Board to weigh all of that evidence.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more
questions for, you know, Corporation Counselor the Department of
Finance at...
Seeing none, the Chair would like to make his
recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Chair would like to recommend the passage of the
proposed bill on first reading, "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING SECTIONS 3.48.425 AND 3.48.450, MAUl COUNTY
CODE, PERTAINING TO REAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member
Molina. Members, any discussion?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What about the corrections, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, we can take that up right now. On item number
(5), the question about a mailing address and in its place street address to
identify the homeowner that's living on that particular piece of property.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, I've tried to work on a ... I guess replacement
language for number (5) which is under (C) subsection (5). It currently
reads establishing a mailing address as the street address of the subject
property, but I would defer to Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, that sounds fine. It ... it would be just one of the
number of tests that would be available for the Finance Director to review
and to consider.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
correct.

Thank you.

I think that's the only change if I'm

MR. TAGUCHI: Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe in the prior meeting one of the changes was changing
under item on number (4) where it has "and" to replace it with "or".
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Or. That's correct. Okay, Members, those are the two
changes. On number (4) changing the word "and" to "or" and then
changing the mailing address to "street address". Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm looking at the handout of October 11th
from you to us. Under just letter (C) my, my copy has a line through the
phrase "but not limited to" and handwritten on the side "one or more".
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the last sentence would be read by evidenced by
one or more of the following. I'm just asking if that is your, your, your
recommendation to us?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I think we discussed that the last time we, we met and
that was one of the recommendations. Mr. Taguchi.
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MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla. The, the handwritten notes unfortunately it
was ... I believe the bill in front of us does not incorporate any of the
handwritten notations. The bill in front of us today is simply the bill as
proposed by the Budget Director. The changes that are in handwritten
notation were the changes that was initially suggested from our prior
meeting on August 13 th . However, some of the language changes at that
meeting that was recommended changed the bill from a bill that list a
variety of things that the Director my consider and that bill tried to restrict
the language. Therefore you see the word "shall" in place of "may", and
you see the striking of the "but not limited to", and we included "one or
more". So once again, I believe the bill in front of you, as written, is the
bill as proposed by the Finance Director. Any changes to that bill through
an amendment should be made at this time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
amendment to item (C)?

Mr. Hokama, do you wanna make an

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, no. I just wanted to be clear on what the motion
is entailing, Mr. Chairman. So my understanding is the two areas of
correction is in, on under (C)(4) and under (C)( 5)?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes, at this time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I was gonna ask ... hearing the motion if either
Mr. Young or Mr. Teruya has any further comments or recommendations
before we take action on your recommendation, Chairman.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Teruya, Mr. Young?
(note: pause)
MR. YOUNG: Okay, I'll relay the comment that Mr. Teruya just mentioned to
me. It's, it's ... precedes that of section (C) but it's related to commercial
purposes in part (B) subsection (5). That, you know, commercial purposes
means any commercial use on the property including renting, yeah, so you
know not being ... not ... where it's not being used as a personal residence I
don't think that part is necessarily in doubt here with the language
revisions proposed, but it is for the Committee's consideration.
In terms of the part of number (4) changing "and" to "or" and the part in
the title section of part (C) where it's "one or more of the following", we
wouldn't have any objection to that clarification, recognizing that each of
these are potential test items for the taxpayer.
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In terms of the proposed language for part (5) where it reads to the
effect ... something to the effect of establishing a mailing address with the
street address being that of the subject property, we think that is a
reasonable definition and would add a lot of clarity to this section. Thank
you for the opportunity to comment, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros followed by Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair. Director, when you
mentioned commercial purposes, I just need some clarification. So
somebody that is operating a farm or a ranch that's commercial, what
happens with them?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Medeiros. There is a different section of the Code that
relates to commercial use on property. And basically that portion of the
property that is used for commercial purposes is parceled out of the overall
property so you would still ... if you live on the property-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. YOUNG: --for example a farm, that part where you live on is parceled out.
The value is established to get the homeowner's exemption on that part,
but the part that is commercialized is subject to the assessment separately
from that. So you don't get the benefit of the exemption on that part.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But the portioned out portion where the
person lives they still get the full exemption?
MR. YOUNG: They get the full exemption up to the value of that property. So
in other words if the parcel... if a portion ... they live on a $500,000
property let's say half, you know, half of it is their principal residence, the
other half is commercialized. So if you did half. .. let' s say it's 250 but the
home exemption is 300, they're only get up to the 250. They don't get the
remaining 50,000 applied to the other portion of their property.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and how is that determined ... say you
have 10 acres and they're farming five acres, so five acres becomes the
property where the house is and so it's based on that? I mean who goes
out there to see if five acres are being farmed?
MR. YOUNG: That's what our appraisers are, are for.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do. Okay.
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MR. YOUNG: And those ... those lots also require a submitting, a submittal of
farm plan. And those are technical questions that perhaps Mr. .. , if, if the
Committee so wishes to get into it, Mr. Teruya is better equipped to
respond to those technical questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, I think for me I was more concerned
that if there was commercial activity on the property they wouldn't get the
exemption, but your explanation is that the commercial portion gets
portioned out, and the part lived on is then assessed and whatever qualifies
as the home exemption value is then given to them?
MR. YOUNG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Just real quickly.
Because what Member Hokama brought up triggered me to look at my
notes and, and I think what we did is ... and what started this was the intent
to reside and we changed that to "residency in the ... " and this is on (C),
Members, the second sentence where it starts intent to reside. We changed
that to "residency in the County shall be evidenced by one or more of the
following ... " We took out "may" and replaced that with "shall" and then
took out "but not limited to the following". And basically that made it that
these five criteria are the only criteria that can be used. And now what I'm
hearing today is that would limit the Director from using other criteria
that's not listed here so ... and I think that really is the intention is to allow
the flexibility.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, I just wanted to clarify that. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, before we take a vote ... or is
there any more discussion in regards to this particular ordinance, proposed
ordinance? If not, before we take a vote I'd like to have Staff clean up
item (C) and (1) through (5) so that we get clarity when we come back
from our break ... and vote on this particular ordinance. So it's 3:04 right
now. If we can return at 3: 15. Members, this meeting is in recess until
3:15 ... . (gavel) ...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

3:04 p.m.
3:21 p.m.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). . . Thank you, Members, for that short
recess. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now back in
session. At this time the Chair would like to ... we do have a motion on the
floor. At this time the Chair would like to call on Ms., Ms. Anderson for
any amendments.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, thank you, Chair. I'd like to propose
two amendments that we previously discussed. Section 3 .48.450(C)(4)
delete the word [and] and insert or.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It's been moved by Member Anderson, second by
Member Johnson. Members, any more discussion on that? If not all in
favor say aye
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Opposed? Seeing none. Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Anderson, Baisa, Johnson,
Mateo, Medeiros, Molina, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Hokama, and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Thank you, Chair. And this is the
amendment for item (5). Section 3.48.450(C)(5), delete [A mailing
address in the County] and insert A mailing address consistent with the
subject property.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It's been moved by Member Anderson, second by
Member Johnson. Members, any more discussion? All in favor please
say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Opposed? Seeing none. Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Anderson, Baisa, Johnson,
Mateo, Medeiros, Molina, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Hokama, and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, back to the mam motion.
discussion? Member Anderson.

Any more

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd just like to thank the Department for
bringing this bill forward and apologize that it's taken us so long to get to
this point.
But I think it's gonna help everybody have a clear
understanding of what their rights are in regards to homeowner's
exemption and make it easier for the Department to enforce this. And so I
look forward to this getting on the books.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. And the Chair would like to ask the
Committee, if there's no objections, to allow the Chair to make technical
revisions as necessary with our Staff.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. All in favor of the main motion please say
aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Opposed? Seeing none. Motion is carried. Thank you
very much. Members-- 34-
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MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla. Will the, will the filing of the com-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Will you be filing the communication?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
And the filing of the communication
(end of tape 2A) ... Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Thank you very much Committee.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Anderson, Baisa, Johnson,
Mateo, Medeiros, Molina, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Hokama, and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ITEM NO. 69:

FIRST READING of revised proposed bill;
FILING of communication.

and

IMPROVED RESIDENTIAL OR APARTMENT REAL
PROPERTY TAX REFUND (e.c. No. 07-281)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The second item on the agenda is gonna be real brief.
We'll take no actions on this particular proposal. Is BF-69, improved
residential or apartment real property tax refund.
The Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 07-281,
transmitting the matter of real property tax refunds of improved residential
or apartment properties purchased by homeowners.
Members, this is an item that the Chair had brought forward to the
Committee in regards to real property tax for those residential
homeowner's that don't qualify for the homeowner's exemption because
of the time of purchase of their residence or residences here in Maui
County.
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Members, if you turn to the Chair's letter dated (pause) October the 1ih,
improved residential or apartment real property tax refund. And the
concern here is that if you look at the memo as presented by your
Committee Chair, you know, we did take, take a look at property tax in
regards to when you file your ... or when you ask for your exemptions. If
you file your exemptions prior to December 31 S\ you get your
homeowner's exemption, but if you file after December 31 S1 ... and some of
the cases that I'd like to cite is that, you know, we do have families that
bought homes here in Maui County, especially those affordable homes
after December 31 s1 they don't get the home exemption classification as
their tax base. But their tax base is based on improved residential rather
than residential.
So if you could take a look at this proposal and provide the Chair with
some comments in regards to this particular proposal that the Chair is
intending to bring forward I would appreciate it, but at this time the Chair
would like to call on the Finance Director if you do have any comments.
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Chair, the, the Department recognizes that according to the
Maui County Code, the deadline to submit a claim for the homeowner's
exemption is stated as December 31 S1. And this is largely due to the fact
that in order to create the certified rolls for certification that the Council
requires, it's required by the Code that the calendar set on December 31 S1.
Furthermore, the tax year ... although your taxpayers are billed in August
and then again in February, that represents the tax year, again, according
to the Maui County Code, for the tax rolls on January 1s1 through
December 31 S1. SO any proposed revision, while I understand the intent of
or the desire to make some revisions to afford homeowner ... people who
buy property after January 1 but before July 1S\ I would notify Members
to pay particular attention in terms of how the Council calendar relates to
the County Code calendar in conformance with certification, the stated
homeowner's exemption deadline, as well as the other programs that are
tied to both of those deadlines as well, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Young, for that comment. And
Members in regards to the letter that was sent to you, one of the idea was
to provide a refund during the tax year by going ... by budgeting the dollars
if we're gonna go forward with this proposal. Meaning that you know
we're looking at possibly $1.4 million as refund to those property owners
that didn't qualify because of the timeframe.
So, Members, if you could take a look at this, you know, we did provide
you with some examples. When you do look at the back of the page on,
on the second or page four, you do have some example as far as, you
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know, gross valuation, Homeowner's at $2 per 1,000 feet [sicJ... $1,000
and the $300 exemption and kind of comparing it with the Improved
Residential at 4.85 per 1,000 with no exemptions. You can see the big
difference in property tax that is being levied on, you know, especially
those families that, you know, I consider, you know, in the affordable
range that must pay because their home wasn't completed prior to the end
of the year.
So if Members take a look at this if you think it's feasible. And if you
have any comments or recommendations you can pass it on to the Chair.
So Members I would appreciate that and I think this would help out
especially the people on the affordable housing side big time. Member
Hokama, comments.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Chairman, I appreciate your being open to the
Members different ideas and, and possible future proposals regarding this.
Again, it puts our Department in a difficulty ... and I don't know what this
means to us closing our books on time since it still refers then to the
previous year's taxation and revenues. So it's something that I think the
Department and our Tax Division need to review closely and see if there is
some issues that we need to be made aware of prior to making a final
determination. But I take with interest the letter sent to our colleague Mr.
Molina. Obviously you know we do things differently from the mainland,
but it is not the County's job to do the due diligence of a future property
owner whether or not they buy or don't buy and what category they fall in.
If they pay the realtor their commission, I would have thought that the
realtor would have provided them answers to their questions. So you
know I have my strong positions about what I believe a potential or
property owner should do as, as responsible property owners and not be
spoon fed by this County what they believe may work on somewhere else.
You know you wanna be on Maui you follow our laws. I really don't care
what New York, California, and others are doing, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you, Mr. Hokama for those comments.
Members, any more comments? Thank you. So at this time the Chair
would like to defer item BF-69 if there's no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.
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ITEM NO. 70:

REPEALING SECTION 3.48.465, MAUl COUNTY
CODE, RELATING TO TAXPAYERS OVER SIXTY
YEARS OF AGE (C.c. No. 07-282)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The third matter this afternoon is in regards to BF -70,
repealing Section 3.48.465, Maui County Code, relating to taxpayers over
60 years of age.
The Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 07-282, from
the Director of Finance, transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL
FOR AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 3.48.465, MAUl
COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO T AXP AYERS OVER SIXTY
YEARS OF AGE". The purpose of the proposed bill is to clarify that
home exemption amount for taxpayers over 60 years of age is not in
addition to the $300,000 homeowner exemption provided to all
homeowners regardless of age. This time the Chair would like to call on
the Finance Director for comments.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The ordinance proposed before you is
considered more of a housekeeping or house cleaning measure in the sense
that prior to 2005, the Maui County Code had two distinctions for
homeowner's exemption. The homeowner's exemption for everyone
under the age of 60 years of age was $80,000; and for those taxpayers or
homeowners over the age of 60 but under the age of 70 were afforded a
different homeowner's exemption amount which was 110,000; and for
those over the age of 70 they were afforded a different homeowner's
exemption amount that of being 130,000. In 2005 the Council increased
the homeowner's exemption amount to 200,000; and then in 2006
increased that amount to 300,000.
In application, a homeowner gets only one of these exemptions. It did not
make sense for anyone under the a ... anyone over the age of 60 to request
for 110,000 when they were afforded the 200,000 exemption or anyone
over the age of70 to request 130,000 when they are actually entitled to the
200,000 or 300,000 dollar exemption. But that part of the Code has
remained in the, in the Code nonetheless. I did look at some of the
committee reports going back to the discussion which occurred during the
Budget session. And some of the discussion at the Council then had was
the safeguard to ensure that the exemption was afforded to ... was at least
on the books should the Council decide to lower the overall exemption
amount that the seniors or anyone over the age of 60 would still be
ford ... afforded a base. But that discussion was largely because the
proposed ordinances at a time had a sunset clause for the 200,000 and the
300,000. Since then the sunset clause has been removed. So now the
200 ... I'm sorry ... now the 300,000 homeowner's exemption is solidly in
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place. The ordinance before you would propose to clean up the Code by
removing that part of the seemingly moot senior citizen homeowner
exemption in order to remove any ambiguity or vagueness in terms of
dis ... , distinction between the two different types of home, homeowner's
exemption, and that's the ordinance that's proposed before you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Young. Members, any questions for
the Department at this time? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Kalbert, and primarily when we went
through these discussions, if 1 recall, it was that the age section of. .. was
not necessarily related to the amount of income, but in other words there
were people who were of substantial means that were retired that could
well afford to pay the additional amount. Therefore it was something that
not all seniors were really in need of is that correct?
MR. YOUNG: Well ... 1, 1 didn't see any recollection of that in the committee
report but the discussion ... but the homeowner's exemption as it applies
for the 300,000 and versus this how it was applied for this 110 or the 130
had nothing to do with income. It was purely based on age and whether or
not you owned and lived in your ... that you lived in the property that you
owned.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right, and 1 think prior. .. it might have been
even prior to your being in the position that you're in. We did have
discussion though that centered around just the issue that 1 raised that
people oftentimes, you know, when they were of substantial means and
even though they were over age 70 they retired here, they may not even
you know really need such kind of assistance whereas we were
targeting ... or what the objective was, was that we wanted to target
individuals who may have not as, you know, greater retirement picture but
give them some kind of relief. So what we did was we didn't tie it to the
age. We went back and we just gave it uniformly to everyone.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, 1 see ... yes that, that is true. 1 do recall that ... yeah, that there
was discussion about increasing the homeowner's exemption to be more
broadly and not based on age. You remove that age requirement
essentially when you raised it to 200,000 and 300,000 later, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and is there any desire on the part of the
Administration because we do have individuals ... 1 know we have the
circuit breaker and, you know, ostensibly that is working for those
individuals of limited financial means. Have you found that to be the case
with some of our seniors who may be land rich but cash poor? You know
are they taking advantage of the circuit breaker? Because that's still ... I' m
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still periodically getting complaints from people about having to sell
places or turn it over ... in fact some of them have turned over their
property to their children and that may be why there's no longer a
homeowner exemption applicable because they've deeded the property to
their children and their children live somewhere else. So have you had
any feedback from our seniors who fall into this group that might be
eligible from a ... an income perspective to take advantage of circuit
breaker, and do they have any comment about being upset that this benefit
is essentially being taken away in their eyes?
MR. YOUNG: Well, we're not taking ... this, this ... to be clear this ordinance
we're not taking anything away because no one is in this program. You
know this is purely homeowner's exemption not circuit breaker. Well-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I, and I understand that, Kalbert, but the
whole perception from the public ... because I remember when Dyke
Kondo was still alive he use to come every year and said where' s my extra
$10,000? And I remember very clearly the perception that some of the
seniors they wanted their entitlement and they felt that because of their age
they were entitled to it, and this is the section that that was contained in.
So I know what you're saying, but I also know what their perception is.
MR. YOUNG: Yeah ... we've already done and ... you know we normally do our
presentation of the circuit breaker program around the community, various
senior groups that requested so you know we have done it. And I. .. either
myself or Deputy Director Hayashi we ... we personally do the presentation
with the support of Mr. Teruya's staff. And you know we also ... to the
seniors we've also told them that, you know, the difference between the
previous exemption of 110 to 130,000 versus now the 300,000 so that they
all understand that they get a much bigger benefit. Now, yes, there's no
distinction between if you're over 70 or you're only 30 there's no
distinction there. But clearly they get a very big benefit and it's the same
benefit that everybody else has, but I have not heard any complaints about
any seniors wanting to be distinguished that they should get more than
say, you know, someone under age 60. Everyone you know recognizes
that is a big value. Maui County has a very generous value given to
homeowner's at $300,000 the exemption.
In terms of your land rich/cash poor scenario, the circuit breaker and the
homeowner's exemption only applies to property that you own, that you
live on. So as long as someone is ... has a ... has their residence is the land,
is the property that they live on and they own it, they benefit from either
the homeowner's exemption and a lot of times the circuit breaker,
especially if they have a large tax or they have a lower income so they do
benefit. But in those instances where it's investment property or property
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where they don't live on it but they own it, they don't have the benefit of
the homeowner's exemption or the circuit breaker. And unfortunately
there really is very little provision in the tax code that affords them any tax
breaks that are equal to size to that of the homeowner's exemption or the
circuit breaker. So they ... those people don't have a whole lot of benefit as
much as that is afforded to homeowner's in that situation, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I, and 1 guess too, you know, I'll
just give you the comment that was made to me, and that's that if you get
a homeowner's exemption of the 300,000 well that's great, you know, but
your real property assessment keeps escalating. What was happening to a
lot of our seniors or in their minds was that, you know, they felt it was a
little unfair because they said well, somebody else was working, you
know, you got two people that are still in their earning years, and here
we're two retirees in our, you know, non-earning years sitting on a fixed
income, and yet they may have revenues coming in from other sources just
enough so that the circuit breaker mayor may not help them that much.
So they still pay the higher amount, but their financial situation is different
from somebody who's getting the break who is still in active workforce.
So that's, you know, that's the real world that they're dealing with and ... 1
don't know. 1 mean, Mr. Chair, I'm still ... the jury still not out on the
circuit breaker because 1 still hear some people they don't understand it or
they have not avail themselves of it, and 1 know you're doing all the
presentations that you possible can but you know ... has this really
helped ... have you had dramatic increase? 'Cause 1 know our population
demographic and particularly Lahaina side, you know, our property values
are way up. May be coming down a little bit this year in terms of
assessments, but have you had a lot of response to circuit breaker then?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, 1 have a lot of faith in the circuit breaker program. It, it is a
valuable tool to, to taxpayers to prevent them from being as the term goes
"taxed out of their home". It's a big safety net. It doesn't catch everyone
because there's different circumstances, but the people that need it, that
legitimately need it and could benefit from it they, they get it. We
do ... there's no other tax program in the County ... without exception
there's no other tax program that we spend more time and resources to
communicate the circuit breaker program to. So you know the word does
get out. Not everyone applies that could, but we spend a lot of time trying
to make sure that people at least hear about it. And it does provide that
safety net. It's ... the taxes on Maui ... real property taxes on Maui is ... are
actually very low by comparison to the other counties in the State of
Hawaii. It's very low in comparison to a lot of jurisdictions across the
country in fact. And it's been more so since in the previous years ... in the
recent years that the Council has lowered the tax rates for homeowner's,
raised the homeowner's exemption, and on top of that you actually have
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lowered the threshold for the circuit breaker from 3 percent down to 2 liz
percent and very shortly it'll go down to 2 percent. The combination of all
those three factors ... just lowering the tax rate and, and raising the
homeowner's exemption, that alone rendered a lot of the people in the
circuit breaker it ... moot for them because their taxes didn't rise up. Yes,
their assessments may have gone up, but you raised their exemption and
you lowered the tax rate. So it offsetted it for a lot of people that were
previously on circuit breaker. Now one year later you then lower the
threshold for circuit breaker to try and cast a bigger net to try and help
people out and so, you know, we are seeing more people now qualify for
circuit breaker than say last year, but we are seeing also more people
applying for circuit breaker. And whether or not they actually qualify to
get it is a, you know, it's a matter of their own personal circumstance and
calculation. But for those reasons I believe it's, it is ... it's still relevant for
the County ofMaui. It is the most generous circuit breaker program in the
State. It helps a lot of residents in the County. And I think it's ... provides
that safety net which, you know, it sounds like the Council is looking to
provide. It doesn't work for everyone's circumstance, but for those people
that truly need it and it really is a godsend to them to protect them. So I, I
think the circuit breaker program is very valuable and relevant still.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you. And so I. .. may I just assume
then that there's been a dramatic increase in the number of people
applying for circuit breaker and being granted circuit breaker?
MR. YOUNG: We don't know the numbers yet on being granted because the
application process is still open until December 31 S\ but the number of
people that apply each year, you know, we've ... in the last three years
we've seen some rather market increase in the number of people that
apply.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And you don't have a percentage offhand do
you? Percentage increase?
MR. YOUNG: Yeah, it's, it's, it's around that 10 percent threshold increase each
year. The reason why we have to look at the number of people that apply
and as opposed to the number of people on circuit breaker is because of
that effect that I mentioned earlier. When you raised the homeowner's
exemption and lowered the tax rate in that one year the circuit breaker was
still 3 percent so that kind of like, you know, made it not relevant for a lot
of people. But then in the subsequent year, this year, where you made
it ... where you reduce the threshold to 2 liz percent you kind of cast the
bigger net so we may have ... we may see more people qualifying, but we
may have an effect where, you know, last year kind of dipped down, now
we're back up, you know, the relevance of the circuit breaker credit, yeah.
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So for those reasons the flexibility of Council to give those tax benefits I
think provide a lot of value and benefit to our citizenry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, very much, Mr. Young. And I
will ... when I get asked these questions I'll just simply refer them to you
and you can explain the circuit breaker. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. I just like to commend
the Department for going out to the senior centers and provide this kind of
information in regards to circuit breaker because understand that a lot of
'em do apply.
MR. YOUNG: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi, I, I think we do have circuit breaker
coming up on the 29th ?
MR. TAGUCHI: The agenda's not posted, but you indicated that you wanted to
take that up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Thank you. So, Members, on October 29th we're
gonna have the circuit breaker on the agenda. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. And, yeah, I was
just about to say that even though we don't have the circuit breaker on our
agenda it's still a very worthy program and I appreciate the Department's
efforts to get the word out. I know I've had some, a personal.. . couple of
personal experiences where I've mentioned this to some seniors and
they ... then once they got the benefit, the return in terms of their amount of
money that they have to pay for real property taxes there's a dramatic
difference. So there's still a lot of people out there that's not aware of the
program. So, again, I ask the Department to continue their efforts to get
the word out. But as it relates to what we have on our agenda today, I can
totally support Mr. Young's proposal which is a housecleaning matter, and
300,000 versus 110,000 or 130,000 certainly sounds a lot better, much
better exemption. And I guess it was just a matter of when we're gonna
finally address it. So I think by all means this is something that, you
know, is worthy of supporting cleaning this up so I wait your
recommendation, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:

Thank you.

Members, any more discussion?

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Members. At this time, the Chair would
like to recommend the passage of the proposed bill, "A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 3.48.465, MAUl COUNTY
CODE, RELATING TO TAXPAYERS OVER SIXTY YEARS OF AGE"
and the filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member
Molina. Members, any more discussion? Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would just state that I'm in strong
support of this motion on the floor. If we can recall why Council in the
'80s move this forward, at that time we were dealing with a lot of retirees
from our agricultural industry. And in the '80s agricultural still, at that
point in time by category, paid the most real property taxes in the County
compared to the visitor industry which is totally reversed in, in today's
time and value of taxation.
Also, Mr. Chairman, I would say that at that point in time also for those
that can remember we were going through adjustments in our view of real
property tax. And at that time, if people can recall, the term of max tax
was used regularly of what should be a maximum tax of a real property
owner's ... So again we've gone through the changes, and at this time it is
outdated, and I would say not essential component of our tax program, and
would agree with Mr. Young because of our authority on rates, while there
has been much attention to the assessment, that is only one half of the
equation of our formula how we do our calculations. And to just be
concerned about assessment does not do anyone a fair assessment of what
is their tax bill. And that is why we have continued made adjustments
downward on tax rates to help offset the assessed valuation issue. And I
just say that because normally my communication from those concerned
with taxation just brings up assessed value. And depending where you are
in your life, Mr. Chairman, if you knew, know of some requirements of
yourself, you want that equity valuation whether it be for home
renovations, second mortgages for col..., your children's educational
needs. Depends where you are in your life many people want that
increased valuation, okay. They may not want that tax, but they want that
valuation for other purposes. And so I, you know, to be fair, Mr.
Chairman, when we view the whole component of taxation it is still my
belief that we provide a very fair taxation to the tax base particular to the
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homeowner's class. So I'm
afternoon. Thank you.

III

great support of your position this

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any--Member Baisa
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a brief comment, Chair. I wanted to
also ... you know I always enjoy listening to Council Chair Hokama
because he has such a great historical perspective. But when I began my
career in working with seniors in the late, very late 1960s, we had a very
different demographic. We were dealing with a lot of seniors that were
dealing with company pensions. And so the company I worked for, MEO,
was trying very hard to find ways to help them survive on small pensions
of like $50 a month. But we all know that the demographics of our
community have changed dramatically. And those ... (end of tape 2B) ...
onto their return or rewards. And though we still have some of them there
are not many left anymore and the economics of seniors have changed a
lot now. We have a more affluent senior who has a pension, might have
social security, might have other income. And so I also, you know, when
we talk about seniors, because of my family situation where I not only
dealt with parents, but also with children who now are raising their
children, and they're struggling. Our young families are struggling.
They're struggling with their paychecks to buy a home, and pay for all the
things they have to. So we have to give consideration to them too. And so
I. .. you know given the choice between the senior exemption and the
exemption for everybody who is a homeowner, I will have to say that I
like this idea very much and I'm totally in support of it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Members, any more
discussion? All in favor of the motion please say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Opposed? Seeing none. Motion is carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember Anderson, Baisa, Johnson,
Mateo, Medeiros, Molina, Victorino, Vice-Chair
Hokama, and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of proposed bill; and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR PONTAN1LLA: Members, that concludes our items this afternoon. Any
announcements? 1fnot, this meeting is adjourned .. .(gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

3:56p.m.

APPROVED:

EPH PONTANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
Transcribed by: Yvette Bouthillier
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